
ABD AL AZIZ SAYER UWAIN
AL SHAMMERI, et al.

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
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)
)
)

Plaintiffs, )
)

v. ) Civil Action No. 02-CV-0828 (CKK)

)
)
)
)
)

DECLARATION OF JAMES R. CRISFIELD JR~

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I, Commander James R. Crisfield Jr., Judge Advocate

General’s Corps, United States Navy, hereby state that to the best of my knowledge, information

and belief, the following is true, accurate and correct:

1. I am the Legal Advisor to the Combatant Status Review Tribunals. In that capacity I

am the principal legal advisor to the Director, Combatant Status Review Tribunals, and provide

advice to Tribunals on legal, evidentiary, procedural, and other matters. I also review the record of

proceedings in each Tribunal for legal sufficiency in accordance with standards prescribed in the

Combatant Status Review Tribunal establishment order and implementing directive.

2. I hereby certify that the documents attached hereto constitute a tree and accurate

copy of the portions of the record of proceedings before the Combatant Status Review Tribunal

related to petitioner Abd A1 Aziz Sayer Uwain A1 Shammeri that are suitable for public release.

The portions of the record that are classified or considered law enforcement sensitive are not

attached hereto. I have redacted information that would personally identify members of the

detainee’s family, as well as their addresses and phone numbers, and certain U.S. Government

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
et al.,

Defendants.
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personnel in order to protect the personal security of those individuals. I have also redacted internee

serial numbers because certain combinations of internee serial numbers with other information

become classified under applicable classification guidance.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foreg~~._~ ~

Dated: [~ Q~C~ I~
~~~f~g,~J~es ~eld Jr.

"~--e’DR, JAGC, USN
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Department of Defense
Director, Combatant Status Review Tribunals

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

OARDEC/Ser: 0217
15 October 2004

From: Director, Combatan~ Status Review Tribunal

Subj: REVIEW OF COMBATANT STATUS REVIEW TRIBUNAL FOR
DET~E ISN #~

¯ Ref: (a) Deputy Secretary of Defense Order of 7 July 2004
(b) Secretary of the Navy Order of 29 July 2004

1. I concur in the decision of the Combatant Status Review Tribunal that Detainee ISN ~
meets the criteria for designation as an Enemy Combatant, in accordance with references (a) and
Co).

2. This case is now c6nsidered final, and the detainee will be scheduled for an Administrative
Review Board.

3r. M. McGARRAH
RADM, CEC, USN

Distribution:
NSC (Mr. Jolm Bellinger)
DoS (Ambassador Prosper)
DASD-DA
JCS
SOUTHCOM (COS)
COMJTFGTMO
OAR_DEC (Fwd)
C1TF Ft Belvo~

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
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UNCLASSIFIED

14 Oct 04

From: Legal Advisor
To: Director, Combatant Status Review Tribunal

Subj: LEGAL SUFFICIENCY REVIEW OF COMBATANT STATUS REVIEW TRIBUNAL
FOR DETAINEE ISN #~

Ref: (a) Deputy Secretary of Defense Order of 7 July 2004
(b) Secretary of the Navy Implementation Directive of 29 July 2004

Encl: (1) Appointing Order for Tribunal #8 of 13 September 2004
(2) Record of Tribunal Proceedings

1, Legal sufficiency review has been completed on the subject Combatant Status Review
Tribunal in accordance with references (a) and (b). After reviewing the record of the Tribunal, 
find that:

a. The detainee was properly notified of the Tribunal process and made a sworn
statement at the Tribunal.

b. The Tribunal was properly convened and constituted by enclosure (1).

c. The Tribunal complied with all provisions of references (a) and (b). Note that 
i~ormation in exhibits R-5 and R-6 was redacted. The FBI properly certified in exhibit
R-2 that the redacted information would not support a determination that the detainee is
not an enemy combatant. Note also that the Translator was allowed to essentially give
expert testimony regarding the explanation of "Omra" to the Tribunal without being
placed under oath (see page 3 of enclosure (3)). The oath administered to interpreters
during the tribunal only states that they "will faithfully perform the duties of interpreter."
Giving testimony is not one of the duties of an interpreter. Nonetheless, in my opinion
this was a minor error that did not prejudice the detainee. I do not believe that any
corrective action is necessary.

d. The detainee made no requests for witnesses or other evidence.

The Tribunal’s decision that detainee #li~iis properly classified as ane. enemy
combatant was unanimous.

f. The detainee’s Personal Representative was given the opportunity to review the record
of proceedings and declined to submit comments to the Tribunal.

2. The proceedings and decision of the Tribunal are legally sufficient and no corrective action is
required.

UNCLASSIFIED
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Subj: LEGAL SUFFICIENCY~REVIEW OF COMBATANT STATUS REVIEW TRIBUNAL
FOR DETAINEE ISN #~

3. I recommend that the decision of the Trib~~onsidered final,

2
UNCLASSIFIED
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From: Director, Combatant Status Review Tribunals

Department of Defense
Director, Combatant Status P~eview Tribunals

13 Sep 04

Subj: APPOINTMENT OF COMBATANT STATUS REVIEW TRIBUNAL #8

Ref: (a) Convening Authority Appoinlment Letter of 9 July 2004

By the authority given to me in reference (a), a Combatant Status Review Tribunal
established by "Implementation of Combatant Status Review Tribunal Procedures for
Enemy Combatants Detained at Ouantanamo Bay Naval Base, Cuba" dated 29 July 2004
is hereby convened. It shall hear such eases as shall be brought before it without further
action of referral or otherwise.

The following comnfissioned officers shall serve as members of the Tribunal:

Colonel, U.S. Marine Corps Reserve; President

~Colonel, U.S. Army; Member

Lieutenant Colonel, JAGC, U.S. Army; Member

J. M. McGARRAH
Rear Admiral
Civil Engineer Corps
United States Naval Reserve
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HEADQUARTERS, OARDEC FORWARD
GUANTANAMO BAY, CUBA

APO AE 09360

8 October 2004

IVlEMORANDUM FOR DIRECTOR, CSRT

FROM: OARDEC FORWARD Commander

SUBJECT: CSRT Record of Proceedings ICO ISN# ID

1. Pursuant to Enclosure (1)i paragraph ~(5) of Implementation of Combatant Status Revimv
Tribunal Procedures for Enemy Combatants Detained at Catantanamo Bay Naval Base, Cuba
dated 29 July 2004, I am forwarding the Combatant Status Review Tribunal Decision Report for
the above mentioned ISN for review and action.

2. If there are any questions regarding this package, point of contact on this matter is the
undersigned at DSN 660-3088.

Colonel, USAF

1350



SECRET//NOFORN//X1

(U) Combatant Status Review Tribunal Decision Report Cover Sheet

(U) This Document is UNCLASSIFIED Upon Removal of Enclosures (2) and 

(133 TR~UNAL PANEL:

(U) ISN#: ~

#8

Ref: (a) (U) Convening Order for Tribunal #8 of t3 September 2004 (U)
(b) (U) CSRT Implementation Directive of 29 July 2004 (U)
(c) (U) DEPSECDEF Memo of 7 July 2004 (U)

Encl: (i) (U) Unclassified Summary of Basis For Tribunal Decision (U)
(2) (U) Classified Summary of Basis for Tribunal Decision (S/NF)
(3) (U) Summary of Deta~uee/Witness Testimony ~OUO)
(4)(U) Copies of Documentary Evidence Presented (S/NF)
(5) (U) Personal Representative’s Record Review (U)

1. (U) This Tribunal was convened on 29 September 2004 by references (a) and (b) 
make a determination as to whether the detainee meets the criteria to be designated as an
enemy combatant, as defined in reference (c).

2. (U) On 29 September 2004 the Tribunal determined, by a preponderance of the
evidence, that Detainee ~s properly designated as an enemy combatant, as defined in.
reference (c).

3. (U) In particular, the Tribunal finds that this detainee is a member of, or affaliated
with, al Qaida, as more fully discussed in the enclosures.

4. (U) Enclosure (1) provides an unclassified account of the basis for the Tribunal’s
decision. A detailed account of the evidence considered by the Tribunal and its findings
of fact are contained in enclosures (1) and (2).

Colonel, U.S. Marine Corps
Tribunal President

DERV FM: Multiple Sources SECRET//NOFORN//X1
DECLASS: XI 1351



UNCLASSIFIED//FOUO

UNCLASSIFIED SUMMARY OF BASIS FOR TRIBUNAL
DECISION

(Enclosure (1) to Combatant Status Review Tribunal Decision Report)

TRJBUNAL PANEL: #8
ISN #: ~

1. Introduction

As the Combatant Status Review Tribunal (CSRT) Decision Report indicates, the
Tribunal has determined that this Detainee is properly classified as an enemy combatant
and is a member of, or affiliated with, al Qaida. In reaching its conclusions, the Tribunal
considered both classified and unclassified information. The following is an account of
the unclassified evidence considered by the Tribunal and other pertinent information.
Classified evidence considered by the Tribunal is discussed in Enclosure (2) to the CSRT
Decision Report.

2. Synopsis of Proceedings

a. The unclassified evidence presented to the Tribunal by the Recorder indicated that
the Detainee traveled from Kuwait to Iran and then to Afghanistan soon after
11 September 2001. He was arrested by the Pakistani Army while attempting to cross
into Pakistan from Afghanistan without identification documents. One of the Detainee’s
known aliases was on a list of captnred hard drives associated with a senior al Qaida
member. The Detainee chose to participate in the Tribunal process. He called no
witnesses, requested no unclassified or classified documents be produced, made an oral,
sworn statement and also provided a written statement.

b. The Detainee, in his oral/written statement (Exhibit D-b), denied being a member
ofal Qaida by saying that "~s accusation does not have anything to support it, but it is
merely words with no evidence to prove it." The Detainee went on to say that he
journeyed to Afghanistan to teach and to help the needy and that he had thought that the
fighting would be far away from where he was going. However, once he arrived in
Afghanistan and the Taliban fell from power, every Arab in Afghanistan was wanted
dead or alive. He claimed he did not need a passport while traveling around Afghanistan
and had left it at the home of his Afghani guide. Since the situation was so bad, the
Detainee decided to not return to the Afghani’s home to retrieve his passport, but instead
starting walking toward Pakistan. He crossed into Pakistan assuming that the Pakistani
police would detain him and turn him over to his home country (Kuwait) once they found
out his identity. Furthermore, the Detainee claimed that he did not use an alias, that he
had, and used, no other name but his own name. He could not prevent someone from
putting his name on a computer. If he wanted to hurt Americans, he didn’t have to travel
to Afghanistan to do it, as there are Americans in Kuwait and he could have hurt them
there.

UNCLASSIFIED/~OUO ISN ~
Enclosure (1)

Page 1 of 4
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UNCLASSIFIED/~OUO

c. The Tribunal recessed the proceedings in order to attempt to produce additional
information that was referenced in the Classified portion of the session.

3. Evidence Considered by the Tribunal

The Tribunal considered the following evidence in reaching its conclusions:

a. Exhibits: D-a tl~ough D-d and R-1 through R-19.

b. Testimony of the following persons: None

c. Sworn statement of the Detainee.

4. Rulings by the Tribunal on Detainee Requests for Evidence or Witnesses

The Detainee requested no witnesses or requested additional evidence be produced;
therefore, no rulings on these matters were required.

5. Discussion of Unclassified Evidence

The Tribunal found the following unclassified evidence persuasive in making its
determinations:

a. The Recorder offered the following exhibits.

(1) Exhibit R-1 was introduced into evidence during the unclassified portion 
the proceeding. Exhibit R-1 is the Unclassified Summary of Evidence. While this
summary is helpful in that it provides a broad outline of what the Tribunal can expect to
see, it is not persuasive in that it provides conclusory statements without supporting
unclassified evidence.

(2) Exhibit R-2, the request from the Federal Bureau of Investigation to redact
certain information from the FBI Form 302 (or FD 302), was not helpful to the Tribunal
in determining whether the Detainee was properly classified as an enemy combatant. The
Tribunal therefore found Exhibit R-2 to be without merit.

(3) Exhibit R-3, Answers to the Questions for the Faro’fly ofAbd Alaziz Sayir 
Shamari, undated. This document gave the Tribunal background informafiofl from the
Detalnee’s family about ISN~ The Detalnee’s family was unaware that he went to
Afghanistan and knew only that he was traveling to Pakistan. They believed he traveled
on 15 October 2001. The family additionally stated that he did not quit his job (as will be
discussed in the Classified portion of this Tribunal Decision Report) and that his brother
filed a resignation on his behalf rather so that the Detainee would not be fired. While the
Tribunal could infer, for the most part, to which questions the family was responding, the

UNCLASSIFIED//FOUO ISN #t~
Enclosure (1)

Page 2 of 4
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U~CLASSIFIED//FOUO

questions were not included in the packet. There were some answers, however, to
questions that the Tribunal could not figure out. The Tribunal President directed the
Tribunal Judge Advocate to contact the Legal Advisor to ensure that these questions be
included in the case packages.

b. The Personal Representative offered Exhibit D-b, Written and Signed Statement
by the Detainee with Translation. This document was authored by the Detainee. As
outlined in paragraph 2(b), the Detainee details his answers in response to allegations
made against him in the Unclassified Summary of Evidence ~xhibit R-l).

The Tribunal found the follov~g unclassified evidence unpersuasive in making its
determinations: The Recorder offered ExNbit R-4, a civil complaint filed on behalf of
the Detainee by legal counsel in U.S. Federal Court. A cover sheet from the Detainee’s
legal counsel is dated 8 July 2002. This document was a copy of an "amended
complaint" that has been filed for the Detainee in the United States District Court for the
District of Columbia by~ the "next friend" of the Detainee.
While it illustrated that fact that-the Detgmee i~ listed as a plaintiff in a civil case
currently pending with the U.S. District Court, it had no bearing on the Detainee’s enemy
combatant status.

The Tribunal also relied on certain classified evidence in reaching its decision. A
discussion of the classified evidence is found in Enclosure (2) to the Combatant Status
Review Tribunal Decision Report.

6. Consultations with the CSRT Legal Advisor

Other than the issue raised in paragraph 5a(3) above, no issues arose during the course 
this heating that required consultation with the CSRT legal advisor.

7, Conclusions of the Tribunal

Upon caref~ review of all the evidence presented in this matter, the Tribuna! makes the
following determinations:

a. The Detainee was mentally and physically capable of participating in the
proceeding. No medical or mental health evaluation was requested or deemed necessary.

b. The Detainee understood the Tribunal proceedings. He actively participated in
the hearing. He also asked questions about the Tribunal members’ background in legal
affairs, fairness of the proceedings, and wanted to know who was present in ~he room.
The Tribunal President introduced the individuals present in the room and provided
generic information about the composition of the Tribunal panel.

c. The Detainee is properly classified as an enemy combatant and is a member of,
or affiliated with, al Qalda.

UNCLASSIFIED//FOUO ISN ~
Enclosure (1)

Page 3 of 4
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8. Dissenting Tribunal Member’s report

None. The Tribunal reached a unanimous decision.

Tribunal President

UNCLASSIFIED//FOUO ~SN ~
Enclosure (1)

Page 4 of 4
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UNCLAS SIFI:ED//FOUO

Unsworn Detainee Statements

Detainee: I would like to "know who is present with us in the Tribunal.

Tribunal Presidem: As identified, the Tribunal Members, the Recorder, the Reporter, the
Translator, and you know your Personal Representative. These other two gentlemen are
journalists.

Detainee: Reporters [referring to the journalists]?

Tribunal President: Yes, for this open session.

Detainee: Tell them welcome.

Tribunal President: You have no objections that they attend this session?

Detainee: No. I have no objections, but the Commanders of the Tribunal, do they have a
background in law or law diploma~, or are they just officers?

Tribunal President: They are military officers and one is a Judge Advocate General,
which is a military lawyer.

Detainee: The o~ers, do they know anything about the law?

Tribunal President: We have a general knowledge of the military and the Tribunal
proceedings.

Detainee: I am a civilian, so how can you try me in a military court? Under what basis?

Tribunal President: This is not a legal proceeding. This is an admi~strafive hearing to
determine your enemy combatant status.

Detainee: Good.

The Detainee asked what the Detainee Election Form was and the Tribunal President
read it to him. The Detainee then stated he would explain why he did not call any

, witnesses when he makes his statemen~

When the Tribunal President stated the Tribunal Me~nbers needed a minute to look
over the unclassified evidence to become familiar with it, the Detainee stated it would
have beets better if the Tribunal Members had been familiar with it [the unclassified
evidence] beforehand; that way, if there were any comment about it, the Detainee
would have been able to respond. Additionally, the Detainee was concerned that a
question would arise after he had left the Tribunal and he would not have the
opportnnity to answer the question.

ISN# ~
Enclosure (3)

Page 1 of 14
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UNCLASSIFIED//FOUO

The Tribunal President stated he would have an opportunity to review the evidence
while the Detainee was still in tile Tribunal and would be able to address any questious
to tile Detainee.

The Tribunal President told the Detainee the reason the Tribunal Members had not
looked at any evidence prior to tile Tribunal was to keep a clear mind as to the
Detainee and his enemy combatant status.

Sworn Detainee Statement

In the name of God, most Gracious, most Merciful. Thanks to Allah who, there is no
God but him, and prayers and peace be upon our prophet Mohammed, the last of the
prophets and messengers.

Hear now: From the beginning, the reason I didn’t call any witnesses is because this
matter does not require calling any witnesses. I know that the accused is innocent until
proven guilty. In all of the law, witnesses are brought for the accused. I haven’t heard of
witnesses being called to prove that someone is innocent and has not committed a crime.
First of all, prove that I’m a criminal, and after that I would need to prove that I’m
innocent, and I will bring witnesses. That’s why I did not present any witnesses.

Regarding my answer to the accusation that I am a member of A1 Qaeda, so I say: that
this accusation does not have anything to support it, but it is merely words with no
evidence to prove it. As if monetary receipts were found on me to indicate that I had
given financial support to A1 Qaeda, or that I was arrested in a place specific to A1 Qaeda,
or that I was seen attending their meetings, or that it was found that I have a strong
relationship with Usama Bin Laden, or during the time of my arrest or capture, I was
found with a weapon. So on what grounds have I been associated with A1 Qaeda when
none of these things have happened?

The answer to the accusations that have been brought upon me. The first point, number
1. What is the relationship between traveling to Afghanistan and A1 Qaeda? How can it

¯ be that travel to a large country with millions of people is travel for A1 Qaeda, which does
not even represent 1% of that number or population? For is a person who traveled to
China considered a communist? And is a person who traveled to Iraq considered loyal to
the Baath Party? So, how did you make the fact that I traveled to Afghanistan an
accusation that I am a part ofAl Qaeda?

As for the fact that I traveled from my country, Kuwait, after the events of September,
this is a very natural thing. These events, the events of September, occurred in America.
So the chaos and confusion was not present anywhere but America only. But as for the
rest of the countries in the world, the situation was very normal. People were going about
their routine lives. So, there was nothing strange about my trip.

UNCLASSIFIED/~OUO

ISN#t~
Enclosure (3)
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Also I had met an Afghani man on one of my trips to the "Omra" whose name was
Mohamed and he lives in Iran.

The translator clarified "Omra" is when you travel to Mecca for worship. You can do
it any time of year, except for the designated time for Hajj.

This "Omra," millions of people go and do it every year. So this Afghani man proposed
to me to travel to Afghanistan to teach the Koran and the Arabic language and Islamic
studies. Because there are so many people in Mecca at that time, it is very normal for
you to meet people and say "where are you from" and things like that. So, even though a
person might have been a friend from before, it is normal to meet people during that time.

Returning to the subject. So, he proposed to me to travel to Afghanistan to teach the
Quran, the Arabic language and Islamic studies. Of course, this is after he leamed that I
studied Islamic Studies for 4 years at the Imam Mohamed Bin Saud Islamic University. I
had graduated with a "Very Oood," just a few marks away from "Excelient."

I don’t recall the date I met him [the Afghani man]. This man gave me his phone number
and said to me "If you wish to accept my offer" and I mean traveling to Afghanistan to
teach, ’~hen call me on my phone and I will arrange everything." Then I returned to
Kuwait and after a period of time when the problems happened in Afghanistan, I decided
to accept the offer to teach in addition to helping some of the needy after my family had
transferred some money to me. That was the idea, especially after I had seen on
television the needs of the people.

That is not a peculiar thing because rescue work does not happen unless it is after a
disaster or problem. In ~es of peace and security and prosperity, no one needs
rescuing.

For your knowledge, war in Afghanistan had not stopped for many long years so there
was no difference between before September or after. I had thought that the war would
only be on the battlegrounds because I had seen when Iraq was in my country; I saw the
fighting was only on the front lines. It would not go into the cities or villages, or that
there would be an assassination attempt on certain individuals, for example, Usama Bin
Laden, Mullah Omar, or any of the big figures that were wanted by America. For
example, when they bombed the palaces of Moammar Khadafi in Lybia. After the event
of a plane in Lockerbie [Scotland] or their kidnapping, as it had happened to the president
of Panama, Noreiga, and that the matter would end at that.

I thought my trip would be via Iran, then Pakistan, and that is what I told my family,
because I knew that the relationship between Iran and Afghanistan was bad because
Afghanistan had killed diplomatic individuals who were Iranian, and that’s when things
started to deteriorate between the two countries. I thought the borders would be closed.
But after calling that Afghani man Mohamed, he said to me "It is possible for us to enter

UNCLASSIF[ED//FOUO

ISN#~
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Afghanistan via Iran, for the border crossing point between them i~ operating," so I said
"Then there is no need to travel to Pakistan, particularly since it requires another visa."

I just want to say that it is my nature to smile. I am always smiling, so it’s nothing out of
the ordinary. Don’t think it is anything else.

The Detainee had been smiling throughout the proceedings.

And I had intended to stay for a short period then return. There are several facts that
support that, including that I had sent my High school and University diplomas to the
Arab Republic of Egypt so that I could continue my studies towards my Masters in
Islamic Studies. I had paid my registration dues, and I was waiting for an answer to my
application. This was before my travel. This was done through the Ministry of Higher
Education in the country of Kuwait. It is a Government organization. My application,
this ministry, was not closed until after my imprisonment.

If you want to verify this point, you can get in touch with your embassies in Kuwait and
they will get a hold of the Ministry of I-Iigher Education in Kuwait and they will give
them receipts or documents that will show that I had registered with them and was
waiting for my acceptance into that university.

I also presented my paperwork in order to improve my position at work from a teacher at
Dar A1 Quran, which is a part of the Ministry of Islamic Affairs and Charity, to a teacher
at the Institute of Applicatious after I was sent by the government to obtain a Doctorate
Degree. Those institutes award diplomas higher than High School and less than
Bachelors. This did not happen because I was imprisoned.

You can also verify this: I had sent an application and I was waiting for a reply to set up
an interview. After I came to this prison, I heard from my family that they [Ministry of
Higher Education] had called my family and were looking for me to set up an interview.

So, how could I have traveled to meet with A1 Qaeda, when I had made all those
arrangements? And for your knowledge, my wip was via official channels and with
government issued travel documents. There was nothing in my Kuwaiti passport to
indicate that it was forbidden to travel to Afghanistan, for if there was a restriction, the
mistake is on my government’s part that did not tell me of this restriction. But it was
written in my passport, on the first page, "This passport is valid for travel to all countries
in the world unless it is otherwise mentioned" and they did not mention Afghanistan.

The Kuwaiti government does not restrict travel to any countries, even any Kuwaiti
national who wants to travel to Iraq; the government does not tell them that they cannot
travel to Iraq. The border point between Kuwait and Iraq is closed. If someone wanted
to travel there, there is no law in Kuwait that says it is forbidden.

UNCLASSIFIED/fFOUO
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So, how can you say that my travel to Afghanistan was a crime, when my government did
not restrict that travel?

This is the answer to the second point. After the fall of the Taliban, every Arab in
Afghanistan was wanted dead or alive, whether or not he was a combatant in the first
place. I heard they had started buying Arabs and selling them, so I became afraid at
hearing t~s news so I decided to escape quickly.

It is known by you that ~ traveler, most of the time, does not carry his passport with him
but leaves it with his valuables and luggage, especially in a country like Afghanistan.
There is no one to ask anyone about identification in Afghanistan. You know that there
are many highway robberies in Afghanistan, so how can I can2¢ my passport and official
documents with me?

That’s why I could not return to my luggage. The events had started to evolve a very fast
and dangerous evolution, so I said to the man that was with me "I want to leave quickly,"
so he arranged my departure for me.

As you know the war or fighting inside the country started and the government fell and
people started to fight amongst themselves and the weak escaped. They would not have
taken refuge at the known border stations, because the armed individuals, or assassins or
mercenaries had taken them over and would kill anyone who went there. That is exactly
was happened in Afghanistan. Of course, you know that people in Afghanistan kill for
money. Killing had become the simplest thing.

So it became natural forme to walk and escape to Afghanistan, until I could go to the
embassy there which would arrange my situation. What indicates that I am not a
dangerous person, and that I have no secrets, is that I turned myself into the police
without a chase or resistance or anything else. I went to them.

And then what is the relationship between my crossing the border and A1 Qaeda? Is
everyone who crossed the border at that time a person who is loyal to A1 Qaeda? Those
are words that carmot be said, for when Iraq invaded my country, Kuwait, and men and
children and women were escaping to Saudi Arabia, Jordan and Iran, we did not see
anyone arrest them and tell them you are followers of Saddam Hussein. Knowing that
they were crossing over at the border stations secretly and without travel documents, and
those countries’ authorities would not arrest them but would help them and construct
medical tents for them to treat them in. Under those circumstances no one asks for
documents because the circumstances are not normal in that part of the world.

And then let’s assume that I made a mistake in this matter, I mean hi my crossing the
border without identification documents. The known procedure in a situation like this in
all countries in the world is to detain me until the Pakistani authorities could find out my
identity and country then send me back to my country. Not to turn me over to the
American authorities, as a member of A1 Qaeda and the Taliban, for this is an

ISN# O
Enclosure (3)
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unbelievable thing. Knowing that they asked me for my personal information and I gave
it to them at the first moment, and they said to me "We will verify this with the Kuwaiti
government." So, on what basis did they turn me over to you?

This is the answer to the third point. My name is Abd Al Aziz Sayer A1 Shammri, and I
have no other name but this name. There is no relationship between me and any person
from AI Qaeda. If a name like mine was found on a list with one of the people, then this
would be a likeness in names because there are millions of Arab people that have my
same name. My tribe is very large in the Gulf. My tribe is present in Kuwait, Saudi
Arabia, Jordan, Syria and Iraq. The name, Abdul Aziz, and the name of the tribe is very
well "known and spread out. For my name, many others have it as well.

You haven’t found my personal identification with that man, so you could say you placed
these things with him, so this indicates a relationship between you two, other than a name
similar to mine was found,

And let’s assume the name found was my name. I cannot prevent any person from
writing my name in anything they want because this is not under my control. For
example, if Hitler wrote my name, I would not go to him, and tell him why did you write
my name. As long as I don’t have a relationship with him, then I am not responsible for
his writing. And whomever wants to, will write whatever they want. I don’t have a
relationship with anyone. Also, I asked my Personal Representative, "What was the rifle
to these names?" He said they were just names, there was no rifle. To this, I say, besides
that list is nothing but names only nothing else and nothing is known about it. How can
you say it is from Al Qaeda? And you found just names, nothing else.

That is if this list is not a fake from the interrogators, for any person can type into the
computer whatever they wanted any time they wanted, then say this was found on the
computer.

I have a fmai note. How could I be associated with Al Qaeda and I never traveled to
them? Not even one time. I’m sure the Kuwaiti government gave you a list of my travel,
dates and locations and not one of those travel dates or locations was to Afghanistan, or
the countries that are surrounding Afghanistan. So, how can I be part of an organization
when I never went and traveled and met them?

Also, you know that Al Qaeda is not a political organization, so that it would give
political instructions. They are people who fight. Which means, that someone that was
part of them has to go and train to learn how to fight. So, how can I be a part of them
when I never went to train with them and I never went to their meetings?

Also, ifI had wanted to fight against the Americans, the matter did not require me
traveIing to Afghanistan. The Americans are present in Kuwait. So, ifI wanted to fight
with them, I would have fought them in Kuwait. You saw how people are bombing
Americans in Saudi Arabia. IfI had any hatred on my part, I would have done that to the

ISN# ~
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Americans in Kuwait. There was no need for me to travel If you’re saying that the
American is my enemy, these Americans are there in front of.me. The mind does not say
to leave my enemy when he is in front of me and go to another country to fight him.
When that did not happen, it is proof that there is no hatred on my part towards the
Americans.

This answer that I just read to you is based on the information that you presented to me.
if you gave me any other information, I can answer it. I am sure that if all the
interrogators in America came in and interrogated me, they cannot bring anything to me
that will harm me because I am a peaceful person and I don’t have anything.

I think the words I told you are sufficient, that is, if these proceedings are real and legal
official proceedings, and it is not, as some say, a play or movie.

These are the words ofAbd Al Az~z Sayer A1 Shammeri, presented to you. You look at
whatever you want to look at.

Based on the accusations and the points you have shown me, this concludes my
statement. If there is something else that I do not know, if you tell me, I will clarify it.

I have one more thing to say. Some of the things I wrote down and some of the things I
added today.

The Detainee is referring to his written statement that was entered as Exhibit D-b. The
Detainee read from his statement and elaborated on certain points.

Questions by the Tribunal President

Referencing the family affidavit, have you seen it?

Yes, my Personal Repre.sentative showed it to me.

It identifies that you joined the Kuwaiti military in 1992. Is that true?

Yes.

1990 is when Iraq invaded Kuwait. Do you recall?

I don’t remember the exact date.

You recall that tragic event?

Of course I remember, but I forgot the date.

Can you tell us how that affected you mad your family?

UNCLASSWIED//FOUO
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A:

Q:

Q:

My older brother, God rest liis soul, was "killed by the Iraqi forces. I saw the
tragedy in the streets. They were killing people in the streets. Yes, I saw this.
One of the students that was with me at school, they killed him in front of his
mother and brothers and sisters. 8% yes, of course, it affected me very much;

I am sorry about the loss of your brother.

Thank you, very much.

Is this part of the reason you joined the military in Kuwait?

No, a lot ofpeopIe in Kuwait join the military just as a job. It pays good wages.
You know that Kuwait is a country that cannot really fight. It is a very small
country; it is not capable of going to war.

Your father is a retired policeman?

Yes, he’s retired.

Why did you pick September of 2001 to travel to Afghanistan?

It’s just like I told you,.because of the trouble that was over there; to help. Before
the events, I had gotten the offer 1o go to Afghanistan. It was "kind of like an
excuse to travel. You know that charity organizations, they only go to places
where there is trouble or need. They don’t go to any other countries.

The situation in Afghanistan was not dependent on the events of September.
Wars had been going on in Afghanistan for 20 or 25 years.

You had no opportunity prior to that to travel to Afghanistan?

Travel is of my own will. There is nothing really that made me travel at this
moment. It was just travel.

Have you traveled to other countries with the same charitable intent?

It was to close neighboring countries, but just to give some money to the poor or
something. For example, in Kuwait, any person who is poor, the government
gives them wages. In other countries, like Saudi Arabia and the United Arab
Emirates, we know that there are very poor people there and the government does
not help them. Sometimes you travel; you would have some money and just
distribute it because you know in those places there are people who are needy.
My studies were in the United Arab Emirates, so I know that situation there.

UNCLASSIFIED//FOUO
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Also, I traveled to Mecca several times and saw the beggars there. People pay or
give a lot of money in Mecca because they think that place is blessed.

There was no need for me to travel to far places, except for this one time.

Q: . While you were in Afghanistan, did you ever have, in your possession, a weapon?

A: No.

While you were in Afghanistan, did you observe violent acts against Afghanis or
other individuals?

A: The nature of the reason why I went there is very far from the things you are
talking about.

The Tribunal Presideut stated that his questions were relevaut for determining the
Detainee’s enemy combatant status. The Detainee did not understaud, so the Tribunal
Presideut read the defiuition of enemy combatant to the Detaiuee. The 1)etainee
understood.

Okay, I didn’t see any violent acts,

Questions by the Tribunal Members

Q: Do you speak English?

A: Little.

Q: That you’ve learned here?

In Kuwait they teach us English for about 8 years. It has now been 12 years.
Being around the soldiers here helps us.

Q: How long have you been here, at the camp?

A: Almost 3 years.

I want to stay onthe line of questioning you heard a few minutes ago. The
problem we have with a certain portion of your statement is that you indicated
you chose not to carry your passport with you because you said Afghanistan was
such a dangerous place. We understand that there was no government functioning
there because you said it was after the fall of the Taliban. we presume, therefore,
virtually everyone carried weapons or sought personal protection of some kind,
yet you said you did not carry a weapon, even though you were concerned with
the danger. In addition, even though Afghanistan had no functioning government,

ISN#~
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A"

Pakistan did. We wonder how it was that you thought you could gain entry into
Pakistan with no passport?

Good. Please continue what you were saying.

Can you please reconcile these concerns for us?

Yes. I didn’t say I left my passport in my bag just after the fall of the Taliban; I
did that all the time. One of the reasons that made me not carry my passport with
me, in Afghanistan no one asks you about documentation or identification. In that
particular time, Iwas away from the place that had my luggage and my bags. It
was with the people that had taken me in. I forgot the name of the place I was in,
but the Afghani man that was with me told me that the forces that were followers,
part of the Northern Alliance had entered the closest city to us. They started
killing any Arab they saw and captured them, even if he wasn’t a combatant. You
know they killed some of the women as well. And you know that women in
Islam are not killed; they don’t fight or participate in the fighting. So, when I hear
something like that, I don’t think of going back and getting my passport, I just
think of my life.

Like I told you, I thought ifI went to Pakistan, they would detain me for a while
until they found out my country and then return me to my country. I didn’t think
they would tell me "Since you don’t have identification or a passport, that means
you’re a follower of Usama Bin Laden." I have never heard of this before, if you
don’t have a passport, you are a follower of Usama Bin Laden.

Like I told you, all they had to do was find out my identity and return me to my
country. Even if it’s true that I made a mistake, this doesn’t have anything to do
with America. This is a problem between me and the government ofPakistun. I
don’t know what America has to do with me crossing the border with no
identification. That is in addition to the things I said before. It ties to it.

I’m sure that one of the major concerns surrounds your name being found on a
computer hard drive, or so the U.S. Government says. We understood what you
Said during your statement, that perhaps the U.S. Government could have planted
that documen~ there, but there must be a more reasonable reason those names
appeared on the hard drive. Is there anything else you would like to say to
address that concern?

First, when the Pakistanis mined me over, they did not turn me over because my
name was found on that list, because that list you are talking about, they only told
me about it a few months ago in interrogation. They captured me 3 years ago;
before you captured this person you are talking about. So, you didn’t even
capture me because of this list. My name was not on the international Interpol list
for them to turn me over to you.

~SN#
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Q:

Q:

In that sense, from the beginning the Pakistani government was wrong; it was
illegal for them to turn me over to you.

I will give you an example. Let’s say any country in the world put my name on a
list of people who are not allowed to enter that country. Are you going to come
and ask me why this country put .my name on their list? Or, will you go to that
country and ask them why they put my name on their list? I don’t have anything
to do with this. This is not something I am responsible for. If Bin Laden,
himself, had written my name, is this considered a crime that I committed? Your
duty is, first of all, to ask Bin Laden, and second, you have to look at are the
words of Bin Laden the truth? Let’s say that you called him and he said I knew
this person in China and his name is so and so. Axe you automatically going to
detain that person or will.you look for that man? Are you going to see if he had
any meetings with Bin Laden? Did he meet with any people that met with Bin
Laden? You have to see if the words Bin Laden said are the troth. It doesn’t
mean that any name you fred with Bin Laden you go and catch all those people.
This is not my mistake or my fault that this man wrote my name.

Right now, if you wrote my name, I don’t have the ability to come and take the
piece of paper and rip it up. How can you fault me for the actions of others?

Those are my words and I hope they are good.

As I understand your statement and the information provided by your family, you
are considered to be an educated man in Kuwait?

Thank you.

You are, in fact, a lawyer, aren’t you?

No, in my studies I study some things, but I am not a lawyer. IfI wanted to be a
lawyer, my degree would enable me to work as a lawyer.

You do have a degree is Islamic law, do you not?

That’s what brought me here to this prison, this degree.

That’s unfortunate.

God willing, when I get out of here I won’t study any of this Islamic law. I’ll just
raise sheep or cattle and live in the desert.

In your statement, you claim to be quite well informed of world events and
history?

ISN#~
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A: I don’t live in the desert. I live in a city that has television and radio.

At the time you made your decision to travel to Afghanistan, you were well aware
of the civil war there?

Yes.

And, you knew that it had been going on for quite some time?

Yes,

You were not concerned for your personal safety?

I told you, when Iraq invaded Kuwait the fighting between these forces was only
occurring on the front lines. You saw, in Europe, there was a war there in the
days of Hitler, Italy, the fighting was on the battlegrounds or front lines, but in the
cities, the people were living their normal lives.

The markets were functioning. The places of worship, mosques and churches,
were functioning! The hospitals were functioning. Men would marry women and
they would start new families. Life was going on; it would not be interrupted
except on the battleground or places where there was fighting.

The danger is if the fighting was in the streets. In that case, the people would be
scared and all aspects of life would be interrupted. I didn’t think the situation
would be that way in Afghanistan. I thought the lines where the fighting was, the
fighting, the government would fall and that would be it.

I also did not realize or think that the government of Afghanistan would fall in the
blink of an eye. Everyone there thought the war would go on for a very long
time. I was just traveling there for a very short time and then would return.
When I went there, I didn’t think the situation would explode like that.

On September 11, 2001 were you still in Kuwait?

Yes,

According to information your family provided, it says you went to Pakistan on
October 15, 2001. Is that close to being accurate?

I think it is close to the date, but I don’t remember exactly.

Is the October time frame reasonable?

UNCLASSWIED//FOUO
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A: Approximately.

By that time, a reasonable person could infer that the conflict in Afghanistan was
about to widen substantially.

Quite the opposite. It wasn’t like that. I think maybe your watching the news was
very little at that time. The Americans were saying at the time that this war would
take a long time. They were saying that the Taliban fighters were very ferocious
in their fighting. That is what they were saying in the news. They weren’t saying
their enemy was weak and they were going to finish this in moments. Maybe the
news in your country was something political and they wanted to gain something
political from it. We, the simple people, take in the news as we hear it and that’s
what we heard.

When you were in Afghanistan, I know you said you didn’t remember the town
you left your valuables in, but can you tell us a little bit about what you did before
things turned bad?

First of all, why did I forget the name of the place? The names of these places
were in a language that was not my own. It was for the first time I was hearing
the names of these places. My work, the charity work, is always in villages, so it
wasn’t very useful to me or it didn’t mean much to memorize the names of these
villages. That is the reason I forgot the name.

After this Afghan man took me in and I stayed with him, by the way, I just want
to make you aware that this Afghani man spoke Arabic. He was the middleman
between me and the people I was going to teach. I would teach in Arabic and he
would translate it into Afghan. With the Koran, you have to teach it in Arabic.
We don’t have any translations; it has to be read in Arabic.

So, I was moving around between different mosques and every so often I would
stay with different people with this Afghani man that had offered me this
opportunity. I would teach them whatever was related to that certain period of
time. For example, teaching them how to pray and to read short passages. They
can’t pray without those passages. I would teach them things that were not
disputed between Muslims.

I moved around from place to place for a short while and then everything went
bad. Then, the phase of trying to escape began.

I know it may be difficult, but can you estimate how long that was? A couple
days or weeks?

UNCLASSIFIED//FOUO
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A: I swear to God it’s difficult because I went through difficult situations at that
time. These periods of time are very far away right now. It wasn’t long, but I just
can’t remember exactly.

Q: You were on vacation from your job?

A: By God I remember that I did take a vacation, but I don’t remember if it was a
medical leave. I don’t remember exactly, but I know there was something, Just
keep in mind that when I was here, I stopped eating and drinking for about 100
days, so I have forgotten a lot of things. The details, I cannot remember. You can
take that information from my interrogation files. I’m sure that I gave it to them
[interrogators] inthe beginning.

The Detainee made the following final statement:

I hope that you really are fair in this Tribunal and that you do not punish me for things
that other people have done. IfI made a mistake, and you want to punish me for that, I
don’t have a problem with that because it was something that I did. Don’t place other
people’s mistakes on me.

The Detainee asked to speak with his Personal Representative following the
Unclassified portion of the Tribunal and the Tribunal President allowed this, as long
as the Personal Representative’s schedule allows i£

AUTHENTICATION

I certify the material conta~ed in this transcript is a true and accurate summary of the
testimony given during the proceedings.

Tribunal President
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Personal Representative:
~ame/Rank)

Translator Required~. YES

DETAINEE ELECTION FORM

Date: 24 Sep 04

Start Time: 1820

End Time: 1950

MAJOR, USAF

Language? ARABIC

CSRT Procedure Read to Detainee or Written Copy Read by Detainee? YES

Detainee Election:

[] Wants to Participate in Tribunal

[] Affirmatively Declines to Participate in Tribunal

[] Uncooperative or Unresponsive

Personal Representative Comments:

Detainee wants to participate.

Detainee wants to make both an oral and written statements

Detainee did not request any witnesses.

Personal Representative:
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Combatant Status Review Board

TO: Personal Representative

FROM: OIC, CSRT (20 September 04)

Subject: Summary of Evidence for Combatant Status Review Tribunal - AL SHAMMERI, Abd
A1 Aziz Sayer Uwaln

1. Under the provisions of the Secretary of the Navy Memorandum, dated 29 July 2004,
hnplementation of Combatant Status Review Tribunal Procedures for Enemy Combatants
Detained at Guantanamo Bay Naval Base Cuba, a Tribunal has been appointed to review the
detainee’s designation as an enemy combatant.

2. An enemy combatant has been defined as "an individual who was part of or supporting the
Taliban or al Qaeda forces, or associated forces that are engaged in hostilities against the United
States or its coalition parmers. This includes any person who committed a belligerent act or has
directly supported hostilities in aid of enemy armed forces."

3. The United States Government has previously determined that the detainee is an enemy
combatant. This determination is based on information possessed by the United States that
indicates that he is a member of al Qaeda.

a. The detainee is a member ofal Qaeda.

1. The detainee traveled fx0m Kuwait to Iran and then to Afghanistan soon after
1 t September 2001.

2. Detainee was arrested by the Pakistani Army while attempting to cross into
Pakistan fi’om Afghanistan without identification documents.

3. One of the detainee’s known aliases was on a list of captured hard drives
associated with a senior al Qaeda member.

4. The detainee has the opportunity to contest his designation as an enemy combatant. The
Tribunal will endeavor to arrange for the presence of any reasonably available witnesses or
evidence that the detainee desires to call or introduce to prove that he is not an enemy combatant.
The Tribunal President will determine the reasonable availability of evidence or witnesses.

UNCLASSIFIED
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Memorandum

To

From

subject

Department of Defense
Office of Administrative Review
for Detained Enemy Combatants
Col. David Taylor, 0IC, CSRT

FBI GTMO
Counte~terrorism Div~on

REQUEST FOR REDACTION OF
NATIONAL iSECURITY INFORMATION

Date 09/15/2004

Pursuant ito the Secretary of the Navy Order of 29
July 2004, Implementation of Combatant Review Tribunal
Procedures for Enemy Combatants Detained at Guantanamo Bay
Naval Base, Cuba, Section D, paragraph 2, the FBI requests
redaction of the information herein marked:. The FBI makes
this request on the basis that said information relates to the
national security of the United States ~, Inappropriate
dissemination of said information could damage the national
security of the United States and compromise ongoing FBI
investigations.

CERTIFICATION THAT REDACTED INFORMATION DOES NOT SUPPORT A
DETERMINATION THAT THE DETAINEE IS NOT AN ENEMY COMBATANT

The FBI certifies the aforementioned redaction
contains no information that would support a determination
that the detainee is not an enemy combatant.

The following documents relative to ISN ~ have
been redacted by the FBI and provided to the OARDEC, GTMO:

FD-302 dated 12/i0/2002
FD-302 dated 06/iI~2003

iRedactions are blackened out on the OAR/DEC provided
document.

~See Executive Order 12958
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Memorandum from’~ ~ "~---~ i-to Col. David Taylor
Re: REQ~ST FOR REDACTION, 09/15/2004

If you need additional
Scene Commander

assistance, please contact On

Tst
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ANSWERS TO THE QUESTIONS FOR THE FAM]:LY OF
ABD ALAZIZ SAYIR AL SHAMARI

o

Manic

No other names
Date of Birth
Address

: Abd Alaziz Sayir AI Shamari.

1973 (Kuwait).

Father Name
Mother Name
Brother’s Names
Sister’s Names

Wife’s Name :~ ,,
Date of Marriage : ~na of May 1994
Children Names : ~

Educational Background:
Kindergarten : A1 Reg’a Kindergarten
Elementary : Abutharr A1-Ghafari, Reg’a
Secondary School : Naufal Ben A1 Harith, Reg’a
High School : Salem AI Mubarak, Reg’a

Yes, he did attend University in United Arab Emirates in A1 Sharja, Imam
Mohammed Ebn Saud University as Scholarship. He studied Islamic Law
(Shari’a). He earned a degree in Islamic Law.

The latest home address he has is the same the same address on Answer No. I
Telephone No.

He went to Pakistan on the 15t~ October 2001 to help and aid the poor people
and the refugees on the borders of Pakistan and Afghanistan. He traveled by
Airplane.

He did tell us that he is going to Paldstan, he says that "I am going there to help
these refugees and poor people at the borders and also to contribute some money
on behalf of my sick and old mother to gain more blessing from God for her."

He joined the military in 1992 and he attended a three month course of training,
then he become Sergeant, he worked as the Head of the Clerk in one of the
sections in the Kuwait Army Headquarters for approximately three months, and
then he resigned and worked in the Ministry of Islamic Affairs as an employee
in the Department of Mosque’s Affairs for about 4 years, his salary was
KD270/-. He got a scholarship from Kuwait Government and then he took
educational leave and went to Sharja to attend the University. He graduated in
early 2001 and he came back and become a teacher of Quran (Dar A1-Quran) 
the same Ministry. His salary become approximately KD680/-.
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9

I0.

11.

12.

13.

15.

His father is a retired policeman (Chief Sergeant in the Deparlanent of General
Investigations).

This question being answered in Answer No. 8

This question being answered in Answer No. 8

He did not quit his job, what happens is that when Abdulaziz exceeds his
vacation days, his brothe~ was afraid that he will be fired (kicked-out)
from his job and in Kuwait regulations if any governmental employee is fired
from his job he will not be allowed to work in the Government again for a year
time. Also at that time there was no communication with Abdulaziz. So he
decided to file a resignation on behalf of Abdulaziz to his work, so when
Abdulaziz comes back he can easily re-employed again without waiting for a
year time.

Yes, he is married. His wife understand that he went to Pakistan to help and
aids the poor people after he learned that a lot of refugees coming toward the
boarders of Pakistan from Afghanistan, and he always thinks of the others
suffering and always try to help them. So he left Kuwait in a short vacation (2
Weeks) to help those poor people and come back very shortly.

We have no idea about this. All we understand that he left Kuwait to Pakistan.

He funded his trip to Pakistan, and as we said previously, we have no idea about ̄
his trip to Afghanistan, if he did go there.

16. He usually attends the mosque close to the neighborhood, named (Al Reg’a
Mosque).

17. No, he was not a member of any charitable non-governmental organizations nor
A1 Wafa Organization.

18.

19.

20.

21.

No, he was not supposed to meet anyone in particular upon his arrival to
Pakistan.

He did call the family three days after his arrival to Pakistan and says that he
arrived there safely and he is in good health and he will participate on aiding the
refugees flooding to the borders and within two weeks he will be back and that
was his first and last phone call.

No, he did not.

He did traveled sometimes to Saudi Arabia to visit Makkah for worshipping and
the other trip was from and to Sharja while he was studying there. We do not
know who he might met with.
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State of Kuwait Civil IDCard

Civil No.

Name

Nationality

Date of birth

Expiry Date

273092300724

Abdul~izS~erOwinZaher~-Shammari.

Kuwait

~1973 Sex Male

8/3/2005

Overleaf:

Civil NO. of the concerned party

Nationality No.

Address

Street

Building/ Plot

Unit No.

Tel. No.

105014175

273092300724

Type of Unit

Floor

Blood Group
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SHEARMAN ~, STERLING
Washington, D.C.

801 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
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Telephone: (202) 50g-8000
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR T~ DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

FAWZI KHALID ABDULLAH FAHAD AL ODAH
Detainee, Camp X-Ray/Camp Delta
Guantanamo Bay Naval Base
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

K.I:IALED A. F. AL ODAH
Next Friend of Fawzi K.halid Abdullah Fahad
Ai Odah
Kuwait

OMAR RAJAB AMIN,
..................... D e taiue_e,_C_a_m_ p_ X - R~a y/_C_a.__mp Delta

Guantanamo Bay Naval Base
Guantanamo Bays Cuba

MQHAMMAD R. M. ~t. AM~N
Next Friend of Omar Rajah Amin
Kuwait

NASSER NLIER NASER AL MUTAIRI

)
).
)
)

No. CV 02-0828 (CKK)

Detainee, Camp X-Ray/Camp Delta
Guantanamo Bay Naval Base
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

NAY~.N.~.J. AL, MU tAtRI
Next Friend of Nasser Nijer Naser AI Mutairi
Kuwait

KHALID ABDULLAH MISHAL AL MUTAIRI
Detainee, Camp X-Ray/Camp Delta
Guantanarao Bay Naval Base
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

M_ESHAL A.NL TH AL MUTAIRI
Next Friend of Khaild Abduilah Mishal
AI Mutairi
Kuwait

ABDULLAH KAMAL ABDULLAH KAMAL
AL KANDARI

Detainee, Camp X-Ray/Camp Delta
Guantanamo Bay Naval Base
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

)
)
)
)
)

.)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
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MAN$OUR IC&. KAMEL
Next Friend of Abdullah Kamal Abdullah
Kamal AI Kanda~’P~~ "
Kuwait

ABDULAZIZ SAYER OWAIN AL SHAMMARI
Detainee, Camp X-Ray/Camp Delta
Guantanamo Bay Navai.Base
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

Al.$hammari
Kuwait

Abdulazziz Sayer Owain

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

)

)
)
)

ABDULLAH SALEH ALl AL AJMI
Detainee, Camp X-Ray/Camp Delta
Guantanarno Bay Naval Base
Gua~l~ai-~io Ba~TCuba

M-ESFER SALEH ALI AL AJMI
Next Friend of Abdullah Safeh Ali AI Ajmi
Kuwait

MOHAMMED FUNAITEL AL DIHANI
Detainee, Camp X:Ray/Camp Delta
Address Unknown

~K F.S.1VL AL DAIHANI "~
Next Friend of Mohammed Funaitel AI Dihani1

FAYIZ MOHAMMED AI-IM~D AL KANDARI
Detainee, Camp X-Ray/Camp Delta
Address Unknown

MOHAMMAD A.J.M.H. AL KANDARI
Next Friend of Fayiz Mohammed Ahmed
AI Kandari
Kuwait

FWAD MAHMOUD AL RABIAH
Detainee, Camp X.Ray/Camp Delta
Address Unknown

2
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MONZER M.H.A. AL RABIEAH
Next Friend of Fwad Mahmoud AI Rabiah
Kuwait

ADIL ZAMIL ABDULL MOHSSIN AL ZAMIL
Detainee, Camp X-Ray/Camp Delta
Address Unknown

WALID Z.A. AL ZAMEL
Next Friend of Adil Zamil Abdull Mohssin
A! Zami|
Kuwait

SAAD MADAI SAAD HAWASH AL-AZMI
Detainee, Camp X-Ray/Camp Delta

............... ~:ddress Unkffowh-

HAMAD MADAI SAAD
~ da~Saad-Ha~=h
A! Azmi
Kuwai

Plaintiffs,

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

GEORGE W. BUSH,
President of the United States
The White House
1600 Pennsylvania Avenue
Washington, D.C. 20500

DONALD H. RUMSFELD,
Secretary of Defense
Department of Defense
1000 Defense Pentagon
Washington, D,C. 20301-1000

GENERAL RICHARD B. MYERS
Chairman, Joint Chiefs of Staft
9999 Joint Chiefs of Staff Pentagon
Washington, D.C. 20318-9999

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

)
)
)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
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BRIGADIER GENERAL RICK BACCUS,
Commander, Joint Task Force-160
Guantanamo Bay Naval Base
Guantanarao Bay, Cuba

COLONEL TERRY CARRICO
Commander, Camp X-Ray/Camp Delta
Guantanamo Bay Naval Base
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba,

Defend~ms.

AMENDED COMPLAINT

being detained in the custody of the United States at the Guantana.mo Bay Naval Base,

Guantanamo Bay, Cuba ("Guentanamo"), and By 12 of their family members (the"Family

Members") who are also Kuwalti nationals and who speak on their behalf. The Kuwaiti

Detainees have been held virtually incommunicado since as early as January 11, 2002. Although

the Secretary of Defense was authorized by the President in the President’s Military Order of

Nnwmher !3, _gOOl., to detait~n~e4~esid~rterrdetermiratlS~a-that

there is reason to believe they are or were members of al Qalda, or engaged in terrorist acts

against the United States, the President has made no such determination with respect to the

Kuwaiti Detainees.

(,.P_laintiffs do not seek release from confinement in this Amended Complaint. Rather, they

seek modest but essential relief while they are being detained and interrogated by defendants.

They seek the right to (1) meet with their families, (2) be informedof any charges against them,

(3) be able to consult with counsel of their choice, and (4) have access to the courts or 

other impa.,~ial ~ibunaL)These are fundamental rights Of due process guaranteed to detainees

under the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution and customary international law. The grant of

4
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this limited relief will not interfere in any way with the ability of the Untted States~o conduct ts
/

essential war against terrorism or to determine who was responsible for the horrible acts of

September 11, 2001, and to bring those individuals to justice.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

I. The Court has subject matterjutisdiction of this civil action under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331,

1350, and 136I. A cause of action exists under the Constitution, 5 U.S.C. § 702, 28 U.S.C.

§ § 1350, 2241-2243, and the laws of nations and treaties of the United States. To the extent

........... i-rfi.N~i~ t~may be asserted by defendants, that immunity, is waived by 5 U.S.C. § 70Z
,.

The Court is authorized to grant the relief requested by plaintiff~ under 5 U.S.C. § 706, and 28

U.S.C.§§ 1350, 1361, 1651, 2201, 2202, and 2241-2243. /

2. Venue lies in this Court under 28 U.S.C.

PARTIES ’
!

3. Plaintiffs Fawzi IGhalid Abdullah Fahad Al ~lah, Omar Rajah An’an, Na~ser N~jer

Namer AI Mutairi, Khalid Abdullah Mishal AI Mutairi]Abdullah Kamai Abdullah Kamal A1
/

Kandari, Abdulaziz Sayer Owaln AI Shammari, Abd/t~llah Saleh Ali A1 Ajmi, Mohamraed
!

Funaitel A1 Dihani, Fayiz Mohammed Ahmed AI ~ndari, Fwad Mahmoud A1 Rabiah, Adil
!

Zamil Abdull Mohssin ,4.1 Zamil, and Saad Madai~Saad Alzmi (the "Kuwald Detainees") are

Kuwaiti nationals who are detained under the custody of the United States at Guantanamo.
!

4. Plaintiff Khaled A.E AI Odah is a Kdwalti national and the father of plaintiff Fawzi

Khalid Abdull~h Fahad A10dah plalntiffMoharnmad R.M.R. Ameen is a Kuwaiti national and

the brother of plaintiff Omar Rajab Amin; plaintiff Nayef N.N.B.J. A1 Mutairi is a Kuwaifi

national and the brother of plaintiff Nasser Nijer Naser A1 Mutairi; plaintiff Meshal A.M.TH AI

5
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Mu[airi is a Kuwaiti national and the brother of plaintiff Khalid Abdullah Mishal Al Mutairi;

plaintiff Mansour K.A. Kamel is a Kuwalti national and the brother of plaintiff Abdullah Kamal

Abdullah Kamai AI Kandari; plaintiff is a Kuwaiti national and the

father of plaintiff Abdulaziz Sayer Owaln AI Shammari; plaintiff Mesfer Saieh All A1Ajmi is a

Kuwaiti national and the brother of AlStl~ill~ih"S’il~tiAli .AI Ajmi; plaintSff Mubarak F.S.M. AI

Daihani is a Kuwaiti national and the brother of plaintiff Mohammed Punaitel AI Dihani;

plaintiff Mohammad A.J.M.I--I. AI Kandari is a Kuwaiti national a~d the father of plaintiff Fayiz

Mohammed Ahmed A1 Kandan plaintiff Monzer M.H.A. AI l~ab~eah ~s a Kuwaiti national and

the brother of plaintiff Fwad Mahmoud AI Rabiah; plaintiff Walid Z.A. A1 Zamel is a Kuwaiti
/

national and ~he brother of plaintiff Adii Zamii Abduii ~opssm Ai Zamii, and pimnrat~: l-lama,~ ~.

Madai Saad is a Kuwaiti national and the brother of pIai!~tiff Saad Madai Saad_A!-Azmi. Th.e

plaintiffs other than the Kuwalti Detainees are referred% a~ the l~amily Members.

5. Defendant George W. Bush is the Pre~idefit of the United States; defendant Donald H.

Rumsfeld is the Secretary of Defense; defendanl G~neral Richard B. Myer~ is the Chairman of

the Joint Chiefs of Staff; defendant Brigadier General Rick Baccus is the Commander of Joint

Task Force-160, which is responsible for the d~etention operation at Guantanamo; defendant.

Colonel Terry Carrico is the Commandant of 12m’np X-Ray/Camp Delta at Guantanamo and the

custodian of the detainees at Guantanamo. They are sued in their official and individual

capacities. The Executive Branch of the Ufiited State~ Government, designated as the United

States of America, is also a defendant.

6
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III.
FACTS

The Terrorist Attacks of September 11, 2001

6. On September 11, 2001, terrorists struck the United States, highjaeking four airplanes

and flying three of them into the twin tower~ of the World Trade Center in/New York City and

the Pentagon, killing th6usands of innocent people. Soon after this terr.~i’isI attack, the United

StatesGevemment identified the terrerists as members of the al Qaida terrorist organization

-~%- In the wake of the terrorist attack nf September 11, 20gl, President Bush launched a

military ~ampmgn against aVl~-dg~-d~uartere~ m Af~h~n~aWdsu~6-ffCd Ey-tI~TNi ab~

Regime. On September 18; 2001, Congress adopted a Join(Resolut!on that authorized the

President to use force against the "nations, organization..s$ or persons" that "planned, aathorized,

committed, or aided the terrorist attacks on Septembe.i 11, 2001, or [that] harbored such

organizations or persons." Joint Resolution 23, Authorizati6n for use of Military Force, Pub. L.

No. 10740, 115 Star. 224. The United States’ ,military campaign against al Qaida and the

Tah b a r~s-be.i~g~:tucted~tt~.~ooperat~o ...... , ........

coalition of Afghani groups known as the N6r,.hem Alliance, which opposes the Taliban.

8. On information and belief, some members and supporters of al Qaida and the Taliban

have attempted to hide from the United States and its allies during the milit~y campaign in

dispersed areas of Afghanistan and Pakistan. On information and belief, the United States and

its allies have encouraged local authorities in Afghanistan and Pakistan to assist in the location,

identification, and apprehension of these al Qaida and Taliban members and supporters.

7
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/President Bush’s Milltary Order of November 13, 2001 i

9. On November 13, 2001, President Bush issued the Militar~ Order of N/ovember
t

2001, entitled "Detention, Trdatment, and Trial of Certain Non-Citizens in the/War Against

Terrorism (the "Military Order’’). 66 Fed. Reg. 57,831 (Nov. 16, 2001). 

10. Section I of the Military Order recites "l~indlngs’’ about the te~rorist attacks of

September 11,2001, including a finding thst "it is necessary for individuals subject to this order
!

* * * to be detained."

/
In section 2(a) of the Military Order, President Bush d~fineg the term individual

subject to this order" to mean "any individual Who is not a Unit~d~ States citizen with respect

whom I determine from time to time in writing that": "

(1) there is reason to believe that such individual, at the relevant times,

(i) is or was a member of the organization known as al Qaida;

(ii) has engaged in, aided or ab~tted, or conspired to commit,
acts of international terrorism, or acts in preparation therefor, that have
caused, threaten to cause, or have as,~eir aim to cause injury to or
adverse effects on the United States its citizens, national security,
fore~a policy, or economy; or ./

(iii) has knowingly harbored- one or more individ~uals described
in subparagraphs (i) or (ii) of s ,ubsection 2(a)(1) of this order, 

(2) it is in the interest of the United States that such individual 
subject to this order.

12. Section 2(b) of the Military Order declares that "lilt is the policy of the United States

that the Secretary of Defense shall take all necessary measures to ensure that any individual

subject to this order is detained in accordance with section 3, and, if the individual is to he tried,

that such individual is tried only in accordance with section 4."
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13. Section 3 of the Military Order provides that "[a]ny individual subject to this order

shall be (a) detained at an appropriate lo¢~iion designated by the Secretary of Defense outside 

within the United States."

S~izure of the 12 Kuwaifi Deta|nees

~On information and belief, the Family Members allege that the Kuwaifi Detainees

were in Afghanistan or Pakistan, some before and some after September 11,200 l, as voluntee~

for charitable purposes to provide humanitarian aid to the people of those countries, such as

assisting in developing potable water sources, working in hospitals, and arranging fo~ fi%-

sponsorship of orphans. There is a long tradition of such volunteer service by Kuwaiti nationals

in ¢_ou~ic.s-of-~r~,,ofld~idcri~¢/~d~,~tan-ap.d--P-ak~am~Such~tohm~-~r~ i-~

encouraged by the Kuwaiti Government and Kuwaifi empley~[ On;’~t"~f~i~ l~waiti

Government support of volunteer serv.iee is by continuing to pay the salaries of its Kuwaiti

employec~ while they arc engaged in such volunteer service abroad.

~15~ On information and belief, the Family Members ailcgc that none of the Kuwaiti

Detainees is or ever has been a combatant or belligerent against the United States, or a member

or supporter of al Qaida o~ the Taliban, or a member of any terrorist organization, and that none

of the Kuwaiti Detainees has.eye.gaged in or supported any t~rtorist or hostile act against the

United States. None of the Family Members has ever engaged in or supported any terrorist or

hostile a~t against the United States, and on information and belief the Family Members allege

tha~ no other member of their families has ever engaged in or supported any terrorist or hostile

aci against the United States.

~. l~.On information and belief, the Family Memb~r~ alleged
that theKuwaiti Detainees

were seized against their will in Afghanistan or Pakistan after September 11. 2001, by local
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villagers seeking promised bounties or other financial rewards, and that, subsequently, they were

taken into custody by the United States. Several of the families of the Kuwaiti Detainees

received letters from several of the Kuwaiti Detainees after they were taken into custody by the

United States expressing the sentiment: "Thank God I am now with the Americans," and a

confidence that they would soon be able to ~etum home to their families.

.............. United States’ Detention of the Kuwaiti Detainees
/17. President Bush has notdetermined in writing that therc/s reason to believe that, at

./ .
the relevant time_s,~K_uwaiti Detainees is or was a member of the org~jzation known

/

/Milit~ Order2
/

18. None of the o~er defendants has s~ated p~licly or info~ed pl~ntiffs why or on
/

what basis ~e Kuw~ti Detainees ~e being detzine~( None of the defen~ts has ~ted publicly

/
or info~ed plaintiffs ~at ~e Ku~ Det~ne~ gre enemy combat~t~ or belligerent~ ag~nst

/
the Uni~d Sta~s. [

/
19. William T. Monroe, D~uty Chic/of Mission of~e ~b~sy of~e Unit~ States in

Kuwait, sent a leaer dated M~h 25, 2002,~o the Minis~ of For~gn Aff~m of Kuw~ stating
/

that pl~ntiff Fawzi ~alid Abdull~ F~td A10dah h~ b~n in de~fion under United

/
custody at ~ntanamo since Febm~/13, 2002; pMntiff Omar Rajab A~n h~ ~en in

detention under Ummd State~ custod~ at Guant~o since I~u~ 11, 2002; plaintiff N~ser

Nijer N~er A1 Mut~6 h~ been in d~etenUon under United States custody at Gu~n~o since

Febm~y 7, 2002; pl~nfiff ~id/Abdullah Mi~hal A1 Mutai~ h~ been in detention under

United States custody at Guanta~o since Febru~ 9, 2002; pl~n~ff Abdullah Kamal

10
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/
Abdullah Kamal AI Kandari has been in detention under United States cdstody at Guantanamo

since February I 1, 2002; and plaintiff Abdulaziz Sayer Owa’n AI Shammarl / ’ has been in

detention under United States custody at Guantanamo ~inee l~eb~a~ 9, 2002.
"

20. The family of plaintiff Abdullah Saleh All AI Ajmi/~eeeived a letter from him dated

/
" February 28, 2002, mailed from Guantanamo on March 1, 2,002, which indicates that he is in

detention under United States custody at Guantanamo, j

........ ::__ ......
Government that plaintiffs Fayiz Mohammed A~end AI Kandari, Fwad Mahmoud AI Rabiah,

Adil Zzmil At’~hlll lk4"nh~in A1 7_.amil~and-Saad-M.adai-Saa~et~n~ander
/

custody of the United States at Guanatanam~( No confirmation h~s been received to date

concerning plaintiff Mohammed Funaitel,.~l Dihani.

22. On April 3, 2002, Abdul R,~man R. A1-Haroun, a Kuwaiti attorney retained by the

families of the Kuwaiti Detainees, received from the Governmen~ nf Kuwait a enpy ~f the letter

referred to in paragraph 19, from William T. Monroe, Deputy Chief of Mission of the Embassy

of the United States in Kuwait, tp’ the Ministry of I:oreign Affair~ of Kuwait.
/

2̄3. On April 6, 2002, ]F~Ir. Al-tt~roun and plaintiff Khaled A.F. A10dah, representing

the families ef the Kuwaiti D>tainees, met at ~e United States Embassy in Kuwak with Andrew

Merrison, l~i~st Secretary apd Head ef the Politacal Section of the Embassy, and Yousef Khalil, a

political specialist at ~e ~nbassy. Plaintiff Khaled A..F. AI Odah had previously submitted to
!

the United States Embassy a h~t c~ntammg the names ~f ten of the 12 plNntiff Kuwaiti

Detainees, seeking infohnati~n about them. At the ~me of ~e meeting, plaintiff I~aied A.1L AI
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Odah did not have information that plaintiffs Adil Zamil Abdu]l Mohssin"Al Zamil and Saad

/
Mzdai S aad AI-Azmi were in the custody of the United States. /

/
24. During the meeting of April 6, Mr. AI-Haroun and plaid}tiff Khaled A.F. AI-Odah

asked Mr. Morrison and Mr. Khalil to provide them with informat, fon about the ten Kuwaiti

Detainees on the hst prewously submitted by plaintiff Khaled ~:F. AI Odah. Specifically, they

asked Mr. Morrison and Mr. Khalil to confirm that these ten I~.uwaiti Detainees were in the

custody of the United States; to ~dentlfy the location of th~It detentzon; to provide their families

with the opportunity to contact and meet with them; to advise whether any_o_f them were_being_

accused of wrongdoing,and if not, why they were not l~eing released; and, if any oft.he ten were

b~s~;ga~ed, i,~ g,~ui. ~em access ~o counsel o heir choice and cono, ltmnal release during

the pendency of the investigation.

25. At the meeting of April 6, Mr. Morri~bn and Mr. Khalil did not provide Mr. Al-

Haroun and plaintiff Khaled A.F. AI Odah wit~ any information about the ten plaintiff Kuwaiti

Detainees on the list submitted by plaintiff Kl~aled A.F. AI Odah, and would neither confirm nor

deny that any of those Kuwaiti Detainees ~J:re in the custody of the United States. However,

Mr. Morrison said he would take Mr. Al-ttlaroun’s and plaintiff Khaled A.F. AI Odah’s requests

under consideration, consult with other~ and provide them with a reply.

26. Mr. AI-Haroun and plaintiff Khaled A.F A10dah have not received any reply to their

requests from Mr. Morrison or Mr. Khaiil or from anyone else at the United States Embassy in

Kuwait or in the United States Gov,~a’nment,

27. Counsel for plaintiffsfiave been told by the Defense Department that, to maintain

"force protection," the Defense l~epartment has adopted a policy not to disclose the identities of,

or other information about, spe,Cific individuals detained by the United States to their families or

12
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representatives. Counsel for plaintiffs further have been told by th,~Defense Department that the

United States is making such disclosures only to the govemme,n, tS of the countries in which those

individuals are nationals.

28, The Family Members have not been permittefl to meet with the Kuwaiti Detainees.

29. On information and belief, the Faro ly Members allege that the Kuwaiti Detainees

/
have not been informed of the charges, if any agai,n~t them; they have not been ~anted the right

/to designate or consult with counsel of their chmce; and they have not been granted access to the

courts _o_r_a_.n_Y._0~e_r.~_m_p_a~_~bun~_dufing _their dete_nnon. __._/_

Guantanamo
/

/
Cuba, T.S. No. 418, 6 B evans 1113, as extended by the Treat) on Relations with Cuba, May 29,

1934, U.S.-Cuba, art. III, 48 Stat. I682, 1683, T.S. No. 866~ although the United States

recognizes the sovereignty of Cuba over Guantanamo, ’~h~ Republic of Cuba consents that * * *
!

the United States shall exercise complete jurisdiction ~r~d ~ontrel over and within" Guantanamo

during the lease. The United States has occupied Gu~ntanamo Bay since 1903, and has

repeatedly declared its intention to remain there inCefinitely.

31. According to the Office of Legal Co~el of the Department of Justice, "the

Ouantanamo Base would constitute land ’acquii’ed for the use of the United States, and under the

exclusive or ooncurrent jurisdictbn thereo[.’~ccordingly, it would appear to come within

7’ definition of land ’within the~peeial maritime and territorial judsdiction of theU.S.C.] § s

United States.’" 60p. O.L.C. 236, 1982 0LC LEXIS 58 (Mar. 29, 1982). Consistent with this
?

opinion, criminal prosecutions under Titl’e 18 ef the United States Code of civilians and aliens

wha commit offenses at Guantanarno a~:e triable exclusively in mainland United States courts.
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See, e.g.. United States v. Chambers, 940 F.2d 653 (4tu Cir. 1991), un~ublished opinion available

ar No. 90-5664, 1991 WL 137232 (July 29, 1991); United grates v. ~ee, 906 F.2d 117, 117 n. 1

(4th Cir. 1990); United States v. Rogers, 388 F. Supp. 298, 301 ~. Va. 1975). See also 25 Op.

Atty. Gen. 157 (1904) (Guantanamo Naval Station "is practica~l~ly a part of the Government ef 

United States").

32. The United 8tate~ Navy has described Guanta.fiamo as "a Naval reservation which,

for all practical purposes, is American territory. Under the [lease] agreements, the United States

has for approximately [ninety] years exercised the essential elements of sovereignty over this

territory, without actually owning it. Unless we abandon, the area or agree to a modification of

the terms of our occupancy, we can continue in ~the p~esent status as long as we like. [According

~o the United State~ p]ersons on the reservati~fi are amenable only to United States legislative

enactments." See The History of Guantanamo Bay: An Online Edition (1964), available 

http:llwww.nsgtmo.navy.mJll history.ht~i

Defendants~ statements About DeteCt|on at Guantan~mo

33. According to a ,f-act Sheet" tssuect by me W~ite House on February 7, 2002,

President Bush has determined thai the principles of the Third Geneva Convention of 1949 apply

to the treatment of the "Taliban detainees" at ~uantanamo, u not to the al Qaida detainees at

Guautanamo, However, the President has determined that neither the "Taliban detainees" nor

t
the "al Qaida detainees" will be accorded pds~tler-of-war status.

34. Defendant~ have not publicly di~’elosed or informed plaintiffs whether any of the

Kuwaiti Detainees are "Taliban detainees~ or "al Qaida detainees," as those terms we used in the

White House "Fact Sheet" of Febraa~, :2002.
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35. In a radio interview on February 27, 2002, Secretary Rumsfeld said with respect to

the approximately 300 detainees at Ouantanamo: "IT]hey ha~l/now, except for one or two,

been questioned and interrogated, looking for intelligence~,~6rmation so that we could stop

other terrorist threats, people from attacking our coun~nd o~ur friends and allies and our

deployed forces," and that "[w]e’re now starting tTrocess of doing a series of int, errogations

that involve law enforcement. That is to say to/~gtermine exactly what these indivtduals have

done. Not what they know of an intelligenc~/tandp..oint, but what they’ve done from a law

enforcement standpoint. T-hat process_i_~_/~d.erway." United States Department of Defense

News Transcript, P,.umsfeld Interviewfith KTSP-AB~, St. Paul, Minnesota, February 27, 2002,

p. 2. Sec-~’e~w-y-l~mgei~d-eontin~e?at-th~wflt-falHmo-ftrttror-fi’~e-b’,~skets.

i~eeaslS~ chirr someone s an inn~ent and shouldn t haye been brought there, why they would be

36. In a Pentagon news briefing on March/28, 2002, Secretary Rumsfeld said with

respect to the detainees at Guantmaamo: "The f~g~ is that the first people we brought down were
in fact the hardest of the hard core, because~ wanted to get them out of the Kandahar and

Bagram facilities. Now we have bruugh~/down a large portion of the people, and now it is

mix, and they vary. They run pretty m,y~h across the spectrum. It seems to me that that being

the ease one can expect that what w~)t’ happen will be exactly what I said: that some may be

transferred to other countries, soreI may be released, some may be held for the duration, some

may be tried in one or more 0e th~ various mechanisms that ~-re available- the United States

t t ]t/ *criminal jus ice sys era, mi i ~ commissions, or the Uniform Code of Military Justice. * * I

~hink the better way to look at it is not at that group of people in the aggregate, but as I’ve

15
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indicated, individually." United States Department of Defense, News Transcript, DoD News

Briefing - Secretary Rumsfeld and Gem Myers, March 28, 2002, pp. 3, 4.

IV,
CLAIMS FOR RELIEF ,/

/

on the allegations in paragraphs i through 36, plaintiffs claim/Based

. /
First Claim: Denial of Due Process - Violation of the Fi/fth Amendment

/37. By refusing to permit the Kuwaiti Detainees in Ouantana~6 to (1) meet with their

/
fam!li~s, (2) be informed oft.he charges, if any, against them. (3) d/~i_gn~ ate d consult with

............... co~nsel-ohbeirzhoLc~, awd~(4)-have a~ees to-thwcoq~ror ~m, ~oth6r~mp-a~i-ai-t~l~lT~v-~

,aw enforcement inte~o~a~ions wh,ch may lead i~c~Ta--~;ro%;ed, against them,
.defendants have denied and are denying the Kuwaiti Detainees fundamental due process, in

/
violation of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment to the Constitution.

Second Claim: Tortious Conduct Within th eaning of the Alien Tort Claims Act

o /
38. By refusing, to permit the Kuwaiti Detainees in Guantanamo to (1) meet with their

counsel of their choice, and (4) have access to tfe courts or some other impartial tribunal, even
I

during law enforcement interrogations which/may lead to criminal proo~dings against them,

defendants have engaged and are engaging, in arbitrazs’ detention, which is tortious conduct in

violation of the law of nations and a ~reaff of the United States, and actionable, under the Alien

Tort Clams Azt, 28 U.S.C. § 1350. /

Third Claim: Arbi.trary and Unlawful Conduct -Violatmn’ of APA

39. By refusing to permit th~ Kuwaifi Detainees in Guantanamo to (i) meet ~vith their

families, (2) be informed of the cha.rges, fany, against them, (3) designate and consult 

counsel of their choice, and (4) hdve access to the courts or some other impartial ~buna~, even

16
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during law enforcement interrogations which may lead to criminal proceedings against them,

defendants have engaged and are engaging in arbitrary, unlawf~l, and unconstitutional conduct,

/
in violation of the Administrative Procedure Aci, 5 U.$.C/§§ 555, 702, 706.

/

v./
PR.4.YER IFOR RELIEF

/
Based on the allegations in pam~aphs 1 tlirough 39, plaintiffs pray for the followi~ag

/
relief:

:/
4-0. A preliminary and permanent ~fijunction, enjoining defendants from refusing to

~c-r~-th~ u~ilf~a~G-~-an .~n~-t~(i’~n~2-~Tffl~i~i~ a~li~---S(, 2)-NSiho~-dbF- .....................

the charges, if any, against them, (3)~lesignate and consult with counsel of their choice, and (4)

have access to the courts or som~other impart!al tribunal, subject to reasonable national security

and safety requirements.

41. A declaration tha{ defendants’ refusal to permit the Kuwaiti Detainees at

Guantanamo to 1) meet with their families, (2) be informed of theeharges, if any, against them,

other impartial tribun, N, subject to reasonable national security and safety requirements, is a

violation of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment to the Consutut~on, torttous conduct

under the Allen Tort Claims Act, and arbitrary, unlawful, and unconstitutional conduct in

violation of the/Administrative Procedure Act.

17

1396



42. Reasonable attorneys’ fees and the costs of this ac!:idn, and such other and further

relief as the Court may deem necessary or appropriate.

~2Wilner (D.C. Bar #173807)
~eil I~. Kosl,we (D.C. Bar #361792)
Kri~ine A. Nusl~ey (D.C. Bar #4629 9)¯

" I-I~ther Lm-nberg Kafele (D.C.BaN 473584)
¯

~HEARMAN/ & STERLING
/801 P.ennsylvania Avenue, N.W.¯ " . / Washm~on, D,C. 20004

/ ~i~simile: (202) 508-8100

Dated: July 8, 2002
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

FAWZI KHALID ~.BDULLAH FAHAD AL ODAH,
et aL,

Plaintiffs,

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, et al., /
/

Defendants. //
/

/

)

/ )
)
)
)
)

No, CV 02-0828 (CKK)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I ce’rtify that today, July g, 2002, I s j~¢/ed P|aintiffs’ Amended Complaint upon
/

def-end",mts’q:~f~’ausi~l~ ~ ,;up). to b~ mail4~lYO~tage prepaid, and-by causing 

copy to be transmitted by facsimile, to ~efendants’ counsel of record:
/
Roscoe C. Howard, Jr.

/United States Altorney
/Robert Okun

Assistant United States Attorney
Room 11-858
555 Fom:t,h~et, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20530

Katherine Brown
L~gal Assistant

TOTAL PAGE.~O ~1398
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In the name of God, most Gracious, most Merciful

Thanks to Allah who there is no God but him, and prayers and peace be upon our prophet
Mohammed, the last of the prophets and messengers.
Here now:

Regarding my answer to the accusation that I am a member of A1 Qaeda, so I say: That
this accusation does not have anything to support it, but it is merely words with no
evidence to prove it, as if monetary receipts were found on me to indicate that I had given
financial support to A1 Qaeda, or that I was arrested in a place specific to A1 Qaeda, or
that I was seen attending their meetings, or that it was found that I have a strong
relationship with Usama Bin Laden, so on what grounds have I been associated with A1
Qaeda, when none of these things have happened.

First:

What is the relationship between traveling to Afghanistan and A1 Qaeda, and how can it
be that travel to a large country with millions of people is travel for A1 Qaeda wkich does
not represent 1% of that number, for is a person who traveled to China considered a
communist? And is a person who traveled to Iraq considered loyal to the Baath Party?
As for the fact that I traveled from my country, Kuwait, after the events of September,
this is a very natural thing, for these events occurred in America, so the chaos antl
confusion was not present anywhere but America, but as for the rest of the countries in
the world the situation was normal, and people were going about their routine lives, so
there was nothing strange about my trip.
Also I had met an Afghani man on one of my ~ps to the "Omra" whose name was
Mohamed and he lives in Iran, so he proposed to me to travel to Afghanistan to teach the
Quran and the Arabic language and Islamic studies. Of course this is after he learned that
I studied Islamic Studies for 4 years at the Imam Mohamed Bin Sand Islamic University
and I had graduated with a "Very Good" just a few marks away from "Excellent"-and I
don’t recall the date I met him because I have forgotten at this time-and this man gave me
his phone number and said to me: l_f you wish to accept my offer, then call me on my
phone and I will arrange everything.
Then I returned to Kuwait and after a period of time when the problems happened in
Afghanistan I decided to accept the offer to teach in addition to helping some of the
needy, after my family had transferred some moneY to me, that was the idea, especially
after I had seen on television the need of the people, and that is not a peculiar thing
because rescue work does not happen unless it is after a disaster or problem, whereas in
times of peace and security and prosperity, no one needs rescuing, and for your
knowledge war in Afghanistan had not stopped for many long years so there was no
difference between before September or after, and I had thought that the war would be on
the battlegrounds and that the fighting would not reach the cities and villages, or that
there would be an assassination attempt on certain individuals or their kidnapping as it
had happened to the president of Panama and that the matter would end at that.
And I thought my trip would be via Iran, then Pakistan-and that is what I told my family-
because I knew that the relationship between Ixan and Afghanistan was bad, but after
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calling that Afghani man Mohamed he said to me: It is possible for us to enter
Afghanistan via Iran, for the border crossing point between them is operating, so I said:
Then there is no need to travel to Paldstan, particularly since it requires another Visa.
And I had intended to stay for a short period then return, and there are several facts that
support that, including that I had sent my High school and University diplomas to the
Arab Republic of Egypt so as to continue my studies towards my Masters in Islamic
Studies, and I had paid my registration dues, and I was waiting for an answer to my
application, and this was done through the Ministry of Higher Education in the country of
Kuwait, and it is a Government organization. And my application was not closed until
after my imprisonment. Then I also presented my paperwork in order to improve my
position at work from a teacher at Dar AI Quran, which is a part of the Ministry of
Islamic Affairs and Charity, to a teacher at the Institute of Applications after I was sent
by the government to obtain a Doctorate Degree and those institutes award diplomas
higher than High School and lower than a Bachelors and of course that did not happen
because I was imprisoned, so how could I have traveled to meet with A1 Qaeda, when I
had made all those arrangements? And for your knowledge my trip was via official
charmels and with government issued travel documents and there was nothing in my
Kuwaiti passport to indicate that it was forbidden to travel to Afghanistan, for if there
was a restriction, then the mistake is on my government’s part that did not tell me of this
restriction. But it was written in my passport that ’*This passport is valid for travel to all
countries in the world unless it is otherwise mentioned" and they did not mention
Afghanistan.

Second:

After the fall of the Taliban, every Arab in Afghanistan was wanted dead or alive,
whether or not he was a combatant in the first place, because as I heard they had started
buying Arabs and selling them, so I becarne afraid at hearing this news so I decided to
escape quicldy, and as it is known by you that the traveler most of the time does not carry
his passport with him but leaves it with his valuables and luggage, especially in a country
like Afghanistan, because no one asks anyone about their identification in Afghanistan,
that’s why I could not return to my luggage because the events had started to evolve a
very fast and dangerous evolution, so I said to the man that was with me I want to leave
quickly sb he arranged my departure for me and as you know had the war started and the
government fell and people started to fight amongst themselves and the weak escaped,
they.would not have taken refuge at the known border stations, as they know that armed
individuals had taken over them and would kill anyone who went there, and that is
exactly was happened in Afghanistan, for killing had become the simplest thing.
So it became natural for me to escape to Afghanistan walking, until I could go to the
embassy there which would arrange my situation, and what indicates that I am not a
dangerous person, and that I have no secrets, is that I turned myself in to the police
without a chase or resistance or an)~.hing else.
And then what is the relationship between my crossing the border and A1 Qaeda, is
everyone who crossed the border and that time a person who is loyal to A1 Qaeda, those
are words that cannot be said, for when Iraq invaded my country Kuwait, and men and

Page ~%~- of ~
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children and women were escaping to Saudi Arabia and Jordan and Iran we did not see
anyone arrest them and tell them you are followers of Saddam Hnssein.
Knowing that they were crossing over at the border stations secretly and without travel
documents, and those cotmtries’ authorities would not arrest them but would help them
and construct medical tents for them to treat them in, for under those circumstances no
one asks for documents because the circumstances are not normal in that part of the
world.
And then lets assume the assumption that I made a mistake in this matter-I mean in my
crossing the border without identification documents- the known procedure in a situation
like this in all countries in the world, is to detain me until the Pakistani Authorities find
out my identity and country then send me back to me country not to turn me over to the
American Authorities, as a member of A1 Qaeda and the Taliban, for this is an
unbelievable thing, knowing that they asked me for my personal information and I gave it
to them at the first moment, and they said to me we will verify this with the Kuwaifi
government so on what basis did they turn me ~ver to you.

ThUd:

My name is Abd A1 Aziz Sayer A1 Shammri, and I have no other name but this name, and
there is no relationship between me and any person’from A1 Qaeda, and ira name like
mine was found on a list with one of the people, then this would be a likeness in names
because there are millions of Arab people that have my same name for my name many
others have it as well. And then you haven’t found my personal identification with him so
you could say you placed these things with him so this indicates a relationship between
you two, other than a name similar to mine was found.
And lets assume the name found was my name, well I caemot prevent any person form
writing my name in anything they want because that is not under my control, so for
example if Hitler wrote my name, I would not go to him, and tell him why did you write
my name, as long as I don’t have a relationship with him then I am not responsible for b_is
writing. And whoever wants to will write whatever they want I don’t have a relationship
with anyone, besides that list is nothing but names only nothing else and nothing is
known about it, so how can you say it is from AI Qaeda.
That is if this list is not a fake from the interrogators, for any person can type into the
computer whatever they wanted any time they wanted, then say this was found on the
computer.

And with this, prayers and peace from Allah be upon our prophet Mohammed.

Note: How could I be associated with A1 Qaeda and I never traveled to them not even one
time, and I did not participate in their meetings and gatherings.
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UNCLASSIFIED//FOUO

Personal Representative Review of the Record of Proceedings

I acknowledge that on ~-- October 2004 1 was provided the oppommity to review the
record of proceedings for the Combatant Status Review Tribunal involving ISN

have no comments.

__ My comments are attached.

Major, USAF Date

UNCLASSIFIED//FOUO

ISN #~
Enclosure (5)
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